East Sussex
County Council

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

WEDNESDAY, 23 OCTOBER 2024

10.00 AM PRIORY, ROOM 2F CENTRE BLOCK, COUNTY HALL - COUNTY HALL, LEWES

MEMBERSHIP -  Councillors Bob Bowdler, Anne Cross, Penny di Cara, Sorrell Marlow-
Eastwood, Kathryn Field (Chair), Matthew Milligan and Colin Swansborough

AGENDA

1. Minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2024 (Pages 3 - 8)
2. Apologies for absence

3. Disclosure of Interests

Disclosure by all members present of personal interests in matters on the agenda,
the nature of any interest and whether the member regards the interest as
prejudicial under the terms of the Code of Conduct.

4, Urgent items
Notification of items which the Chair considers to be urgent and proposes to take at
the end of the appropriate part of the agenda. Any members who wish to raise
urgent items are asked, wherever possible, to notify the Chair before the start of the
meeting. In so doing, they must state the special circumstances which they consider
justify the matter being considered urgently.

5. CiCC Pledge
Verbal presentation by Children’s Services Department.

6. Exclusion of Press and Public
To consider excluding the public and press from the meeting for the next two
agenda items on the grounds that if the public and press were present there would
be disclosure to them of exempt information as specified in Category 1 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), namely information
relating to any individual.

7. Regulation 44 Quarterly Summary Report - Quarter 2 (July 2025 - September 2025)
(Pages 9 - 12)
Report by the Director of Children’s Services.

8. Any other exempt items considered urgent by the Chair.

9. Looked After Children (LAC) Statistics (Pages 13 - 18)
Report by Director of Children's Services.

10. Looked After Children Annual Report (Pages 19 - 62)
Report by the Director of Children’s Services.

11. Placement and Commissioning Team
Verbal presentation by Children’s Services Department.

12. Any other non-exempt items considered urgent by the Chair.

eastsussex.gov.uk



PHILIP BAKER

Deputy Chief Executive

County Hall, St Anne’s Crescent

LEWES BN7 1UE 15 October 2024

Georgina Seligmann, Governance and Democracy Manager
01273 482355
Email: Georgina.Seligmann@eastsussex.gov.uk




Agenda ltem 1

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL

MINUTES of a meeting of the Corporate Parenting Panel held at Council Chamber, County Hall,
Lewes on 24 July 2024.

PRESENT Councillors Bob Bowdler, Anne Cross, Penny di Cara, Kathryn Field
(Chair), Sorrell Marlow-Eastwood and Matthew Milligan

ALSO PRESENT Carolyn Fair - Director of Children’s Services

Fiona Lewis - Head of Looked After Children Services - Provider
Services

Sally Carnie - Head of Looked After Children Service - Operations

Cassie Atherton - Operations Manager, Youth Support — Social Work
Service

Lisa Apps — Practice Manager - Family and Friends

Dawn Walsh - Lifelong Links & Family Group Conference practice
adviser - Family Rights Group

Sue Dawes — Practice Manager LAC CFW (Contact) Service
Adrian Sewell - Operations Manager, Fostering Team

Belinda Trunfull - Governance and Democracy Officer

45. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 24 APRIL 2024

45.1 RESOLVED to agree as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 24 April
2024.

46. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

46.1 There were no apologies for absence.

47. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

47.1 Councillor Matthew Milligan declared a personal, non-prejudicial interest that a close
family member is an East Sussex County Council (ESCC) Foster parent.

48. URGENT ITEMS

48.1 There were no urgent items.

Page 3



49. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

49.1 RESOLVED to exclude the public and press from the meeting for items 6 and 7 on the
agenda (see minutes 50 and 51) on the grounds that if the public and press were present there
would be disclosure to them of exempt information as specified in category 1 of Part 1 of
Schedule 12(A) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended), namely information relating to
any individual. It was considered that the public interest in maintaining the exception outweighed
the public interest in disclosing the information.

50. REGULATION 44 QUARTERLY SUMMARY REPORT - QUARTER 1 (APRIL - JUNE
2024)

50.1 The Panel considered the Quarterly Registered Children’s Home reports for the following
Children's Home:

Brodrick House

Homefield Cottage

Hazel Lodge

Silver Birches

Lansdowne Secure Children’s Home
Acorns; and

The Bungalow

50.2 The Panel considered Ofsted inspection reports for the following children’s home:
e Brodrick House

50.3 Fiona Lewis, Head of Looked After Children Services informed that the report on the full
inspection of Broderick House had now been received.

50.4 All homes received monthly visits from their Regulation 44 Independent Person including
unannounced visits. Managers across all homes are making good progress on
recommendations.

50.5 Recruitment continues to be a challenge; however, all homes are now working in a
coordinated manner with the Children’s Services Recruitment Team to ensure sufficiency.

50.6 The Panel discussed a range of issues, including recording of information, staff
wellbeing and the ongoing day to day activity within the homes.

50.7 The Panel RESOLVED to note the report.

51. LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN (LAC) STATISTICS

51.1 The Panel considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services which provided an
update on Looked After Children (LAC) statistics.

51.2 Sally Carnie, Head of Looked After Service updated the Panel on the latest position for
LAC in East Sussex. The Panel heard that in the last quarter there has been a significant

Page 4



increase in LAC from 655 to 684 (increase of 29). There were 67 children admitted to care and
38 children discharged from care. This was made up of several large sibling groups, increased
numbers of children being accommodated and a group of unaccompanied asylum seeking
children (UASC) being transferred via the National Transfer Scheme (NTS). The sufficiency of
placements both in-house and in the independent sector continue to be extremely challenging,
however, as a result of the improved financial offer, 16 new foster carer applications have been
received.

51.3 Atthe end of June 2024 there were 351 children living in Foster Care (an increase of
13). 10 children were placed for adoption (a decrease of 6). 100 young people were living in
supported housing options, homes or hostels (an increase of 5). The number of children who
were living with kinship foster carers, increased significantly from 67 to 78 (an increase of 11).
24 children were living at home with their parents whilst remaining subject to a legal order to
ESCC (a decreased of 3). 113 children were living in regulated residential children’s homes (an
increase of 5). 3 children were placed in external Secure Units and there is now 1 child placed
in Lansdowne Secure Children’s Home. 1 child was remanded into youth detention
accommodation. There was still 1 child placed in a Family Centre or Mother and baby unit. 2
children were placed in Residential Schools. At the end of March, there were 77 UASC (a
decrease of 1).

51.4 There is focus on promoting reunification of children to their families as this has a much
more positive outcome.

51.5 Inresponse to a question from the Panel regarding recruitment targets, the service
informed that presently there are no set targets, however, there is a high focus on diversity and
resilience.

51.6 The Panel RESOLVED to note the report.

52. LIFE LONG LINKS AND FAMILY GROUP CONFERENCE

52.1 The Panel received a presentation from Cassie Atherton - Operations Manager, Lisa
Apps - Practice Manager and Dawn Walsh - Lifelong Links & Family Group Conference (FGC)
practice adviser regarding the service development about Lifelong Links and Family Group
Conference.

e Family Group Conference allows the family to identify and establish a
sustainable plan to meet the needs of children and young people within their
family unit. This is an opportunity to involve wider family and friends and for
them to have a voice in the decisions around the child, with key emphasis placed
on the child’s needs.

e Objectives of the FGC include family reunification, prevention of family
breakdown, parental contact issues and identifying alternative family, friends and
carers all the while ensuring that the child’s voice is heard.

e Lifelong Links is a pilot model supporting the concept of relational stability with
the recognition that relationships can continue beyond placements. Lifelong Links
aims to ensure that a child in care has a positive support network around them to
help them during their time in care and into adulthood.

e The number of young people referred to Lifelong Links continues to grow with 10
referrals made so far between April and July 2024 as well as positive feedback
received from young the people taking part.

e Family Rights Group is a national charity that works with parents whose
children are in need, at risk or are in the care system and with wider family

Page 5



members and friends who are raising children. Family Rights Group offer advise
about rights and options when social workers or courts make decisions about
children’s welfare.

52.2 The Panel also welcomed a video titled ‘Sadie’s story’ and commented that it was
pleasing to hear about the children’s experiences. The Panel commended the team on their
positive work with children and their families.

52.3 The Panel RESOLVED to note the report.

53. FAMILY TIME (COMMUNITY FAMILY WORK SERVICE)

53.1 The Panel considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services which provided an
update on the Community Family Work (CFW) Service.

53.2 Sue Dawes, Practice Manager LAC CFW (Contact) Service provided an update on the
work carried out by the CFW service. The CFW service offers countywide provision of
supervised contact, life story book work (for infants) and reunification family support. The
service is based across 3 sites in Hailsham, Silverlands and Newhaven.

53.3 The service currently provides 24,949 contact hours per rolling year (482 contact hours
per week) and work with 309 looked-after children.

53.4 Maintaining supervised contact with parents is important to a child’s wellbeing following
the trauma, loss and separation from their parents. Information is provided in an age-
appropriate way to children around their identity, helping them understand who they are and
where they come from as well as information about their parents, family, home, pets and all-
important people in their lives.

53.5 Careful consideration is placed on choice of venue for the contact meetings ensuring
that it is close to where the child lives. Contact takes place in the community in places such as
the local park or leisure park. A Community Family Worker also attends the contact meeting.

53.6 CFW research and prepare Life Story Book Work for infants and toddlers. A Life Story
Book provides an age-appropriate narrative for the child to look through with their family and
includes detail gathered from the key people in the child’s life.

53.7 Inresponse to a question about venues, the Panel was informed that great care is taken
to ensure that children do not have to travel far, alternative venues will be used including civic
and children’s centres.

53.8 The Panel RESOLVED to note the report.

54. ANNUAL PROGRESS REPORT OF EAST SUSSEX FOSTERING SERVICE - 1 APRIL
2023 - 31 MARCH 2024

54.1 The Panel considered a report by the Director of Children’s Services which outlined the
performance and progress of the Fostering Service between 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.

54.2 Adrian Sewell, Operations Manager — Fostering Service provided further detail regarding
the key activities and work of the service. This included information regarding Fostering Duty,
Commissioning, High Intensive Supported Accommodation, Fostering Recruitment Recognition

Page 6



and Retention, 16+ Fostering & Supporting Independence Team, Support and Supervision of
Foster Carers, Placement support service, Children in Care Council (CiCC) and Priorities for
2024/25.

54.3 Inresponse to a question around the Learning Pool for carers and accessing
information, the Panel was updated that an online handbook is currently being developed which
will be searchable by subject and e-learning courses will be made accessible post completion.
54.4  The Panel discussed opportunities that could be made available by the local authority to
young people in terms of work experience and mentoring and requested that this topic is
considered and presented at a future Corporate Parenting Panel meeting.

54.5 The Panel RESOLVED to note the report.

The meeting ended at 12.15 pm.

Councillor Kathryn Field
Chair

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 7

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1
By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A PP

of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 9

Committee: Corporate Parenting Panel

Date: 23 October 2024

Title of Report: Looked After Children Statistics

By: Director of Children’s Service

Purpose of Report: To update the Panel on changes in the last quarter

Recommendations
The Corporate Parenting Panel is recommended to:
1) Note the report; and

2) Agree the newly designhed performance dashboard with a highlight report for future
Committee meetings as set out in Appendix 1 of the report.

1. Background
Financial Appraisal

1.1 Services for Looked After Children are predominantly funded from the Children’s Services
base budget with some additional smaller funding streams supporting specific activity e.g. Virtual
School activity from the Pupil Premium Grant and the Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children’s
grant from the Home Office.

2. Supporting information

2.1 The data attached at Appendix 1 of the report is drawn as a snapshot on the last day of the
month and some changes occur as data is cleansed within the system. Any changes made to the
system will update the data as at the correct date of the activity not the date of entry, therefore the end
of year figures produced for the Department of Education 903 collection will show the finalised East
Sussex County Council (ESCC) figures. There has been another significant increase in the overall
number of Looked after Children from 684 on the last day of June 2024 to 696 on the last day of
September. This equates to an overall increase of 12 children. There have been strenuous efforts
focussed on returning children to the care of their families during this period as outlined by the
increase in all family placement options described below. Nonetheless there has been a significant
increase in admissions to care over this quarter. There were 61 children admitted to care and 44
children discharged from care during this period. The admissions were made up of several large
sibling groups including a sibling group of 7, increased numbers of children being accommodated
under Section 20 of the Children’s Act and 19 unaccompanied asylum seeking children (UASC) being
transferred via the National Transfer Scheme (NTS).

2.2 A total of 341 children were living in foster care at the end of September 2024, this is 49% of
the total number of looked after children and is a decrease of 10 since the last quarter. Of that
number, 232 (68%) were living with approved ESCC carers. This is a decrease of 7 from the previous
guarter. 5 children were placed with foster carers who were also approved adopters as part of the
Fostering for Adoption pathway, this is an increase of 1 since the last quarter, and there is also 1 child
placed in a Foster to Adopt placements with an agency adopter that is not part of the Regional
Adoption Agency. 101 children (30%) were living with agency carers, this has decreased by 4 since
the previous quarter where there were 105 living with agency carers. In addition, there were 2 children
placed with Other Local Authority foster carers, this has remained the same since the last quarter. The
improved financial offer that ESCC made to sufpaag the recruitment of local foster carers is continuing



to drive up our recruitment success. During Q1 and Q2 this year there was an increase of 21
fostering enquiries up to 138, as compared to 117 from the same period in 23/24. Again, the initial
visits increased by 17 to 43 this year compared to 26 in the same period last year. The number of
approvals rose by 6 in Qland Q2 this year to 12 compared to 6 in the same period 23/24.

2.3 There were 12 children placed for adoption at the end of September 2024 which is an increase
of 2 since the previous quarter.

2.4 There were 99 young people living in supported housing options, homes or hostels, which is a
decrease of 1 since the previous quarter. The figure of 99 also includes 4 children who were under
the age of 16, and who were placed in unregistered provision, this has decreased by 3 since the
previous quarter. These placements are only used in exceptional circumstances where no suitable
alternative regulated provision is available. In these circumstances robust risk assessments and
monitoring plans are made to ensure children are cared for safely.

2.5 At the end of the quarter, the number of children who were living with kinship foster carers,
increased once again from 78 to 86, a total of 8, and 19 children from the end of March 24.

2.6 The number of children living at home with their parents whilst remaining subject to a legal
order to ESCC, increased from 24 to 29 and increase of 5. Planning for placements of this sort is
always monitored rigorously to mitigate any risk factors. Agreement and authorisation for this type of
placement is given at a senior level, unless it is court mandated.

2.7 At the end of September 2024, the number of children living in regulated residential children’s
homes has increased to 122, a total increase of 9 in the quarter. This represents 17% of all looked
after children. 24 children were living in ESCC run children’s homes, which is an increase of 3, and 98
were placed in external residential homes, an increase of 6 since last quarter. Exhaustive attempts
are made to place children in our in-house provision prior to referring out to an agency placement.
There are rigorous negotiations on both quality and price when placement searches are made with
external providers. Wherever possible ESCC attempts to find family-based placements for our
children either within their own networks or with foster carers. Where this is not possible and external
residential homes are commissioned, there remains a commitment to step the children down into a
family arrangement at the right time.

2.8 At the end of September there were still 3 ESCC child placed in Secure Children’s Homes but
these are all placed in Lansdowne Secure Children’s Home rather than external units, and an internal
recharge is made to cover the costs.

2.9 At the end of the quarter there were 2 children remanded into youth detention accommaodation.

2.10 Atthe end of September there were 2 children placed in a Family Centre or Mother and baby
units.

2.11 At the end of September there were 0 children placed in Residential Schools.

2.12 ESCC fully participates in the NTS for Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children (UASC). The
number of UASC was 84 at the end of September which is an increase of 7 from the previous quarter.
In addition, there were 149 Asylum Seeking young people who were Care Leavers during this period,
which is an increase of 26 (123 18-21 year olds and 26 21-25 year olds)

2.13 The number of children subject to Child Arrangement/Residence Orders was 351, an increase
of 1 since the last quarter, and those children subject to a Special Guardianship Order increased to
472 from 471.

2.14 There were 2 complaints from Looked After Children during this period. These are currently
being investigated and not yet concluded.

Page 14



3. Conclusion

3.1 It is concerning that there has been such a significant rise in the number of looked after
children being admitted to care again during this period. However, of this cohort there are higher
numbers of children being looked after in their wider family arrangements either through Child
Arrangement Orders, Residence Orders, Special Guardianship Orders, kinship foster care or placed
with parents. Nonetheless there has continued to be an over reliance on the use of residential
placements when fostering placements are not available due to the national placement sufficiency
issues, and this has continued to place significant pressure on the Children’s Services budget. Many
of the children who have remained in care, or were newly admitted to care during this quarter, had
complex care and health needs and required high levels of skilled care. The Looked After Children’s
system has continued to be very pressurised during this period with the national and local shortage of
care placements, although there are grounds for optimism in the upturn in fostering enquiries. In
addition, ESCC has joined the regional commissioning pilot with the aim of driving greater
opportunities to collaborate and manage the market more effectively across the region. It is to the
credit of the newly formed placement commissioning team that the service has been able to source
Ofsted or Care Quality Commission (CQC) registered placements for the majority of our Looked After
Children and there has been an overall reduction in the number of under 16 year olds living in
unregistered placements.

3.2 There has been significant progress on the design and accuracy of a new Looked after
Children’s dashboard which will assist the Corporate Parenting Panel to scrutinise the overall
performance of the Looked After Children’s service in future.

4. Recommendation

4.1 The panel are recommended to note the report and to replace the current snapshot report
format of the Looked After Children’s Statistics report, with the new dashboard and accompanying
highlight performance report.

Carolyn Fair
Director of Children’s Services

Contact Officer: Kathy Marriott
Tel: 01273 481274
Email: Kathy.marriott@eastsussex.qov.uk

LOCAL MEMBERS
All

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
None

Page 15


mailto:Kathy.marriott@eastsussex.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1

Appendix 1

Placement Type Placement Provider Desc

A3 - Placed for adoption with consent (under PR2 - Other LA provision 1

section 19 of the 2002 Act) with current foster

carer

A5 - Placed for adoption with placement order PR1 - Own provision by LA 3

(under section 21 of the 2002 Act) with current

foster carer

A6 - Placed for adoption with placement order PR1 - Own provision by LA 7

(under section 21 of the 2002 Act) not with PR2 - Other LA provision

current foster carer

H5 - Registered Provider of Supported PR4 - Private Provision 33

Accommodation

K1 - Secure unit PR1 - Own provision by LA 3

K2 - Homes and Hostels
PR1 - Own provision by LA 24
PR4 - Private Provision 97
PR5 - Voluntary/Third Sector Provision 1

K3 - Regulated supported accommodation PR4 - Private Provision 51

P1 - Placed with own parents PRO - Parents or other person with 29
parental responsibility

R3 - Family centre or mother and baby unit PR3 - Other public provision 1
PR4 - Private Provision 1

R5 - Young Offender Institution or prison PR3 - Other public provision 2

U1 - Foster placement with relative or friend- long 2

term fostering PR1 - Own provision by LA 23

U3 - Foster placement with relative or friend- not 2

long term or FFA PR1 - Own provision by LA 63

U4 - Placement with other foster carer- long term 3

fostering PR1 - Own provision by LA 88
PR4 - Private Provision 38
PR5 - Voluntary/Third Sector Provision

U5 - Placement with other foster carer who is also ~ PR1 - Own provision by LA 5

an approved adopter- FFA PR5 - Voluntary/Third Sector Provision

U6 - Placement with other foster carer - not long 3

term or FFA PR1 - Own provision by LA 144
PR2 - Other LA provision 2
PR4 - Private Provision 60
PR5 - Voluntary/Third Sector Provision 2

Z1 - Other placements 15
Total 696

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item

Report to: Corporate Parenting Panel

Date of meeting: 23 October 2024

Report by: Director of Children’s Services

Title: Annual Progress Report of Looked After Children’s Services

1 April 2023 - 31 March 2024

Purpose: To outline the performance of the Looked After Children’s
Service between 1 April 2023 - 31 March 2024

RECOMMENDATION:

The Corporate Parenting panel is recommended to note the contents of the
report.

1. Background

1.1 The Annual Report is attached as Appendix 1. In December 2023 Ofsted
undertook an inspection of East Sussex local authority children’s services. The
experiences and progress of children in care was judged to be ‘Outstanding’, and the
experience and progress of care leavers, ‘Good’. Inspectors highlighted that children
‘come into care at the right time, after all family options have been explored’ and that
our ‘children in care are well cared for and live in homes that meet their needs’. Our
social workers were found to ‘support children exceptionally well’, and care leavers
‘benefit from enduring and trusted relationships with workers who support them well’.

1.2 During the course of 2023-24 a total of 888 children were looked after by
ESCC (an increase of 23 compared to the previous year). At the end of the year there
were four less children in care than the previous year, 657 in total. Whilst it is positive
that this figure stabilised, our rate of looked after children is a significant higher number
than 2 years ago. The presentation of many of these children showed a rise in the levels
of complexity both in terms of their mental health, neurodiversity, poor school
attendance, behaviours that challenge and complex family dynamics.

1.3 30% of this cohort identified as being of a minority ethnic background or of
mixed heritage. 118 were unaccompanied asylum seeking children (UASC) and 157
were unaccompanied asylum seeking Care Leavers (CLs) aged 18+. 41 young people
came to ESCC through the National Transfer Scheme and the remainder were
spontaneous arrivals via Police involvement or directly from Newhaven Port. The home
office hotels that accommodated UASC in East Sussex were closed in
August/September 2023 following a High Court ruling that deemed them unlawful (East
Sussex County Council were party to proceedings).

14 The annual report highlights that there has been an ongoing reduction in the
number of children placed in foster care (in house, kinship or with independent fostering
agencies) and significant increase in children placed in agency residential children’s
homes. Since 2021 there has been a 4% reduction in foster care placements, however
a 60% increase in the use of agency residential homes. This continues to be reflective
of the significant and ongoing national sufficiency challenges regarding the sourcing of
all placement types. There were a limited number of occasions when children were
placed in unregistered provision for short periods of time as a consequence of the

Page 19

10



shortage of regulated placements. These arrangements were subject to robust risk
assessments and carefully monitored. The ‘Use of Resources’ slide (slide 37) gives a
very clear indication of the financial impact of the change in placement split. Many of the
children with the most complex needs were placed in our in-house children’s
homes/fostering placements due to the independent sector being unable to meet their
needs.

15 The overall ESCC performance remained largely stable with very little
significant movement. There were improvements in performance in adoption timeliness,
and the numbers of children adopted, looked after children (LAC) with 3 or more
placement moves, the percentage of care leavers 19-21 in employment, education and
training, and in suitable accommodation. Areas where performance declined included
the percentage of looked after children who have been in care for over 2.5 years who
have stayed in the same placement for 2 years, and the percentage of children placed
outside the Local Authority, these highlight the ongoing placement sufficiency
challenges.

1.6 Adopt South East (ASE) placed 104 children with their adoptive families
during this timeframe (an increase of 20 children from 2022-3) and of these children, 15
were from East Sussex. ASE performed well and was ambitious to achieve adoption for
all children with an adoption care plan in the face of high levels of complexity. ASE
delivered support to over 300 families across East Sussex over the course of the year,
and achieved 237 applications to the Adoption and Special Guardianship Support Fund
for therapeutic support for parents and children.

1.7 ESCC Fostering Service was able to recruit 26 new fostering households,
creating 38 placements (a net increase of eight households). However, a number of our
longstanding carers have retired. Recruitment has become increasingly challenging and
remains the highest priority for the service both in terms of children’s outcomes and the
financial challenges. A refreshed marketing strategy was launched in 23-24, together
with a new payment structure which allows ESCC to be far more competitive in terms of
fostering payments with neighbouring local authorities and independent fostering
agencies. The service has played a proactive role in the development of the South East
regional fostering hub, which seeks to promote local authority fostering across the
region. Embedded within the Fostering Service is the Placement Support Service which
has proved critical to maintaining children’s placements in house. Foster carers highly
value this service which has delivered placement stability support to 134 children over
the course of the year, as well as support for emergency placements, and for children
excluded from school or on reduced timetables.

1.8 The Children in Care Council (CiCC) and Care Leaver Council (CLC) were
very active during this time representing children and young people’s views both locally
and nationally. Our CiCC were awarded second place in Coram Voice’s national
participation award, in recognition of the impact of their work locally and nationally.

1.9 The ESCC children’s homes delivered high quality care to our LAC with the
majority being judged as good or outstanding by Ofsted. Significant improvements have
been achieved across our children’s disabilities homes who support some of our most
challenging disabled children. Lansdowne Secure Children’s Home reopened in January
2024, with a new management structure, new high quality education offer, and improved
health support.

1.10 The physical and mental health of our LAC was closely scrutinised by the
Children and Young People’s Health Oversight Board and the Strategic Operational
Health Group. LAC and Care Leavers were identified as a group who should be
included in the NHS Core Plus 5 cohort to ensure their health needs were prioritised
across all services. The LAC Annual Report identifies a further improvement in the

Page 20



timeliness of the completion of initial health assessments (IHA) and the review health
assessments (RHA), although there is still further improvement required.

1.11 ESCC Virtual School (VS) led by the VS Head Teacher, continues to be very
active in relation to promoting the educational outcomes for LAC, for those children with
a Social Worker (extended duties), those children previously in care (adopted) and
those young people aged 16+ in FE provision via the 16+ pupil premium.

1.12 The service has co-produced the ‘Local Offer’ with our care leavers and is
working to extend the corporate parenting role across partner agencies. The updated
Local Offer was published on the ESCC website and details the extensive support
available to CLs in ESCC.

1.13 The increase in LAC numbers, levels of complexity and sufficiency and
financial challenges prompted ESCC to engage Impower, a Consultancy specialising in
Children’s Services. They have a proven track record in assisting Local Authorities to
deliver improved processes specifically through an approach called Valuing Care, this
has focused on analysing current capacity and ensuring the right placements for the
right child at the right time. The Valuing Care approach is being embedded across the
service and a programme of work is underway through the South East Regional
Commissioning Co-operative to deliver improved placement forecasting, sufficiency,
market engagement and management, maintaining strong outcomes for children and
young people and reducing the financial burden of children’s placements to the local
authorities.

2. Budget Implications

2.1 The services for Looked After Children (LAC) are supported via core funding
from the CSA budget, a small proportion of the Dedicated Schools Grant and by the
Pupil Premium for additional education support for children.

2.2 The level of overspend (£27million) is attributed to the increased numbers of
children in care, and the placement mix, which as described has seen a reduction in the
number of children supported through fostering and a significant increase in those
placed in agency residential children’s homes.

2.3 This level of overspend is unsustainable for ESCC. In 2022-3 and 2023-4 the
council invested in ‘Connected Families’ delivering support to children on the edge of
care and specialist interventions to parents and carers through intensive practitioners.
These demand management initiatives are intended to enable more children to live
safely with their families rather than coming into the care of the local authority and
reduce the numbers of children subject to child protection plans. Children’s Services are
undertaking wider transformation work in line with the government’s Stable Homes Built
on Love strategy, to target resources at earlier intervention, achieve and sustain change
for our families and reduce child in need, child protection and looked after rates.

2.4 In addition the Valuing Care approach has been adopted, refocusing ESCC’s
ways of working to support outcomes for children and young people by strengthening
the links between children’s needs and the resources available and making better
decisions on support, placement and commissioning.

3. Recommendations
3.1 The Corporate Parenting panel is recommended to note the contents of the
report.

Carolyn Fair
Director of Children’s Services

Page 21



Contact Officers:
Kathy Marriott, Assistant Director, Early Help and Social Care 01273 481274

Local Members: All

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: None

Page 22



£z abed

Looked After
Children’s Annual

Progress Report
2023-24

By Sally Carnie/Fiona Lewis

Heads of Service for Looked
After Children




. 2021-

Looked After Children 628 661 (+33) 657 (-4)

Children coming into care 246 249 (+3) 244 (-5)

0-5 year olds admitted to care i 81 (-) 76 (-5)
6-12 year olds admitted to 71 57 (-14) 56 (-1)

111 (+17) 112 (+1)

13+ admitted to care 94
Children leaving care 228 217 (-11) 241 (+24)
4

92 (-2) 99 (+7)

13+ leaving care 134 125 (-9) 142 (+17)

0-12 year olds leaving care 9

Who did we look after?

The data shows a snapshot as of 315t March 2024

» We looked after 371 boys and 286 girls.

» There were slightly fewer children in care than the
previous year, although the overall total remains
high compared with 2 years ago.

» There were higher numbers of children who left
care in this period compared to last year and fewer
children came into our care overall.

» 888 children came in and left our care during the
year which is an increase of 23 as compared with
2022-23. This represents significantly higher
activity levels across the service.



Ethnicity of our
Looked After
Children (LAC)

30% of our Looked After Children (LAC) during 2023-24
identified as being of a global majority background.

Count of CHILD

80
72
70
60
50 48
40 37
30
30
20 18 17
11 13
10 6 4 5
I | ! - I . ! . = I I
— | — -
0
o =S o @ X2 S o O > s & e o o O
0'“\@ v&'b :\,3?0 : <@¢o ‘$(\\\ blz":;! _\\c_jb Q@f:- QS:’(Q\ ,\&?’ G _,\(3?‘0 ‘?Eg{b '{\\d\ qub
& \,\Q,\ Q\Q"\ Q\Q,.\ & %"b \Q?ss '2}\{0 ) A < S \2\'2} & \Jp '_o&\‘Q
¥ & @& F S F R & & &
& B KN & RS S o8 o N 25
s o « B O = = B
s & 3 et O
J 3 _,DAQ" &‘Q ; Q,-r‘}
T « «

Ethnicity .Y



Our Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children (UASC)

9z abed

East Sussex County Council (ESCC) cared for 118 UASC
under 18 during 2023-24, compared to 112 during 2022-23. In
addition, there were 157 Care Leavers aged 18+ which is an
increase of 51 from the previous year.

300
Our UASC were mainly male; 93% were aged 16 or over
and the youngest was aged 13. 230
200
150
During 2023-2024 41 young people came to ESCC through
the National Transfer Scheme (NTS) and the remainder were 100
spontaneous arrivals via Police involvement or directly from
Newhaven Port. 50

Most of these children were from Afghanistan, closely
followed by Sudan, Iran and Vietnam. There were also small
numbers of children from Egypt, Albania, Eritrea, Iraq,

Syria, Gambia, Palestine, Angola, Turkey, Morocco and Chad.

2020-2021

UASC Figures

2021-2022
ECLA

2022-2023

Bl Careleavers

2023-2024



/¢ abed

Children looked after by the
Disability Service

» The Children’s Disability Service criteria for
allocation is ‘Children who have severe and enduring
cognitive delay, severe learning disability, low
functional abilities and physical disabilities'.

* As of 31st March 2024, this service worked with 15
LAC. 14 children were aged 0-15 and 1 was aged 16-
18.

» Geographically, 4 children were living outside East
Sussex.

» These 15 children were in receipt of full-time care.
In addition, the service provided extensive packages
of support and respite to other children and their
families in the community.

Placements

ESCC foster
carers

Agency foster
carers

ESCC Residential
Homes

Independent
Residential
Homes

4

2

5

4



Where our children are living

Data shows a snapshot as of 315t March 2024

Placement Type 31« March
Yo -1 Overall decrease in children placed with total number of 2024
. foster carers, kinship and ESCC foster carers. Slight

in children placed with parents.

n increase in children placed with agency foster carers. -
With foster carer 426 451 431 409
Of these: in house carers 265 276 257 243
Kinship carers 65 84 77 68
g Agency carers 96 91 97 98
< Decrease Decrease in both children placed for adoption and Placed for Adoption 23 14 16 14
N
©

Supported Accommodation 57 63 87 73

ESCC Children’s Homes 14 16 22 17
Agency Children’s Homes 57 58 68 91
TSl Increcse i chicren aged 16+ ving with our supported Rgonoy Specialschoots B | T o
n un-registered ‘other placements') Placed with Parents 22 22 33 27
Independent Living 7 0 0 0
Youth custody/secure unit 3 3 1 3
Hospital/NHS establishment 1 0 1
'”Cr.ease Increase in children living in agency Children’s Homes. Ez:lri\:lly Gentre/Mother & Baby ° 1 1
n Other Placements 0 0 0 22
Total 611 628 661 657




62 abed

How well did we do in 2023-24?

Indicator . .- 2022/23 2021/22
Description 2023/24 Value 2022/23 Value 2021/22 Value
Ref England England
Emoti | & Behavi |
NI 58 motional & Benaviotra 15.8 14.4 16.3 | 13.8 14.2 1
Health of children in care
Percentage of children who
Adoption 1 |ceased to be looked after who 8.2% 9.3% 7.0% 1 9.8% 8.5% l
were adopted
Average time between an LA
receiving court authority to
Adoption 2 |place a child and the LA 241 days 197 days | 318 days l 199 days | 395 days l
deciding on a match with an
adoptive family
Ni62 Number of children looked
Placements |after with 3 or more 14.3% 10.3% 15.0% 1 9.8% 10.4%
1 placements during the year
% of LACunder 16 who've
NI63
been lacfor 2.5 years or more
Placements ) 66.9% 68.7% 71.4% l 71.0% 73.9%
5 & in the same placement for 2
years or placed for adoption
% of LAC at 31 March placed
Placements i
outside LA boundary and 17.8% 16.8% | 17.2% 1 16.5% | 15.4%

3

more than 20 miles from
where they used to live

Where performance has improved/increased it is shown with a green arrow

and where it has dipped with a red arrow |}




0¢ abed

How well did we do in 2023-24? (continued)

Indicator . 2022/23 2021122
Description 2023/24 Value 2022/23 Value 2021/22 Value

Ref England England

Leaving 2 of former relevant young

Care 1 * people aged 19-21 who were
. X 58.1% 55.9% 55.9% 55.14% 54.9%

see note in education, employment or

below training

L -

Ce;i;l;g - 2% of former relevant young

cee note people aged 19-21 who were 92.7% 88.1% 87.4% 1 87.8% 88.4%
in suitable accommodation

below

Leaving 2% of former relevant young

Care3 * people aged 17-18 who were
. . 75.0% 65.6% 77.1% 66.5% 71.8%

see note in education, employment or

below training

Leaving

Care 4 2% of former relevant young

*cee note people aged 17-18 who were 95.2% 90.6% 92.6% l 90.3% 94.5% 1
in suitable accommodation

below
Rate of Children looked after

Thrive Pl 9 per 10,000 population aged 63.9 70.5 64.3 l 69.9 61.6 l
under 18
Percentage of children who

Health 1 had their teeth checked by a 64.6% 75.5% 62.5% 1 70.2% 70.3%
dentist
Final warnings, reprimands

PAF C81 1.1%% 2.0% 0.9% A 2.2% 0.9%

and convictions of lac

Where performance has improved/increased it is shown with a green arrow

* [eaving Care Indicators—calculated using data collected atf the time of each young person’s 17", 18", 19" 20" or 215 birthday

and where it has dipped with a red arrow l.




What the performance data is telling us

ESCC performance data was
produced for 2023-24 and the Although the average SDQ score has The adoption data shows an
national data contained in the Overall performance is encouraging improved from last year, the number improvement in performance
tables above was for the year 2022- and there has been improvement completed has dipped again and as a across most timeliness measures,
23. The improvement arrows across many of the indicators. result an action plan has been together with an increase in the total
trerefore refer to a comparison with developed to address this. number of adoptions.
the ESCC data for the previous year.

LAC with 3 or more Percentage of dental checks
placement moves shows a small completed remains constant and
improvement but continues to be closely monitored by
the national sufficiency issues the strategic health team who are
regarding placement availability trying to improve dental capacity
remain. and availability for LAC locally.

There was good performance
across the Care Leaver indicators
with significant improvements in

relation to EET and suitable
accommodation.




Z¢ abed

Adoption South East (ASE)

In 2023-2024 Adoption South East (ASE) placed 104 children with
their adoptive families. Of these children, 15 were from East Sussex,
including 2 sibling groups of 2 and 11 single children.

The average number of children ASE were actively family finding for
each month during 2023-2024 was 66. Every ESCC child with
adoption as a care plan had a named Family Finding Social Worker in
2023-2024, as did all the children referred for and placed with
Fostering for Adoption carers.

Early permanence has continued to be actively promoted by ASE
aiming to improve the timeliness of placing children for adoption in
ESCC. Ofthe 24 children ASE placed with Fostering for Adoption
carersin 2023-2024, 7 were ESCC children. ASE provided 36
permanency consultations to ESCC Children's Social Workers, which
included discussion and advice about 47 ESCC children. These 36
consultations included 9 which were specifically feasibility meetings
for FFA, however early permanence is a consideration with every child
discussed.

Family Finding & Linking in East

Sussex
Number of children adopted (AOs)

Number of children approved for
adoption

Number of children placed for
adoption

Number of children placed for
adoption by parental consent

Number of 2 sibling groups matched

Number of 3 sibling groups matched

Number of 4 sibling groups matched

Number of children matched outside
of ASE

Number of children matched within
ASE

Number of children placed for Foster
to Adopt (F2A)

18 20
26 22
19 15
0 0
3 2
0 0
0 0
2 1
17 14
5 7



€¢ abed

Adoption South East (ASE)

Adoption Support delivered by ASE

» Support offered to over 300 families who live in the East Sussex area during 2023-24.

» 237 applications to the Adoption and Special Guardianship Support Fund on behalf of families for therapeutic
support for parents and their children.

Keeping in Touch Active exchanges in East Sussex

» 294 Letter box exchanges and 28 face to face meetings.

« 10 Family events were held in the year across the region. Teenage events and respite days have been introduced
this year which have been well attended and very successful.

« A comprehensive training programme for adoptive parents was offered - 14 different courses all run by Adoption
UK.

» An Adoption liaison worker continued to support adoptive parents with a monthly newsletter and direct support
setting up local networks.

Adopted adults

» Support was offered to 36 adults affected by adoption from the East Sussex area.

» Developments regarding setting up a steering group and adult peer groups was underway at year end.



Fostering Recruitment

During 23/24
26 new foster homes were recruited and 38
placements were created

ESCC Fostering Service refreshed its recruitment strategy
during 23/24 in order to meet the national challenge of
recruiting foster carers.

A multi-channel strategy was designed by the specialist
gnarketing and communications Officer using insights from
®he most recent research. The most effective routes to
drive quality enquiries and recruit both experienced foster
carers and new fostering applicants to ESCC were
identified and actioned. Wellbeing and recognition
schemes were also used to enhance loyalty and retention
within our existing cohort of carers.

A new payment structure for foster carers was planned and
launched on 1st April 2024. This fee structure was far more
competitive in terms of fostering payments with
neighbouring LA's and IFA’s. This is likely to encourage
more new applications and transfers, whilst also retaining
the existing cohort of carers.

GCIGGNIT LI 2019-  2020- 2021- 2022- 2023-
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

260 228 200 274 = 236
Q&A calls 106 95 69 79 71

Initial visits 68 48 33 43 45
Approvals 22 20 14 24 26
39 30 21 40 38

Conversion rate . . . ) '
Enquiry to IV 26% 21% 16% 16% 19%

Conversion rate

Enquiry to 8% 9% 7% 9% 11%
approval

Conversion rate

Initial visit to 32% 42% 42% 56% 58%
approval

With relevant, informative messaging, enquirers and
applicants were much better prepared at the
beginning of the application process. This led to

a significant increase in approval conversions. 58% of
applicants continued their application from initial visit
to panel approval.



Gg abed

Fostering Recruitment (Continued)

South East Regional Hub (DfE and Seslip)
It was planned that ESCC would join a partnership with 19 other local authorities to
launch a new regional fostering recruitment hub with a shared goa. The virtual

hub will complement existing recruitment activity across the region from July 2024.

Fostering logo refresh
The refreshed logo will ensure the ESCC brand stands out amongst other local
authority fostering service logos in any regional advertising activity.

Supported Lodgings re-brand to Fostering 16+

A specialist support service for 16+ foster carers was developed during 23/24 to
drive forward specific recruitment for adolescents. Whilst it continued to recruit
under the overall ESCC fostering branding, it also launched a specific 16+ fostering
campaign. This new service was also a response to the new Ofsted registration
requirements introduced in October 2023 for 16/17yr old Looked After Children and
Care Leavers living in supported living arrangements. This service was largely made
up of former supported lodgings providers.

Instagram launch to increase followers and share in a younger market.

Networking 'word-of-mouth’ campaigns

The use of ESCC's corporate channels and Lead Member networks has been used to
promote the ESCC fostering brand and maximise exposure across the county e.g.
ESCC Term Dates web page and at the Full Council Meeting February 2024 all
elected members were supplied with promotional collateral kits to distribute in
their parishes.

foster 94 support

W Caute] withirust "kbsféfirig withfrust

Google Adverts

Continued online search presence with
sponsored ad campaigns. Vital to be visible in a
crowded commercial marketplace to those
considering transferring from their existing
agency and those at the start of their fostering
research journey.



What the Placement Support Service delivered during 2023-24

* 134 Packages of support for children
* 64 Reviews were held

« 22 Set ups were held

» Continued support our in-house Parent and Baby placements

» Support to19 Care Leavers in the community

Placement Support Service

* Maintenance and management of 3 properties for Care Leaver accommodation

og¢ abed

The Placement Support
service offered intensive
support to children living

with foster carers where
there was a risk of
placement breakdown.

The supportis offered
out in the community at
various activity centres,
at either of the caravans

in Newhaven and

Crowhurst, or at Little

Dunbar in Hailsham.

« Support to Virtual School events for 17 young people and 255 sessions

The service continued to
work in close partnership
with the Fostering Duty

team to support short-
term emergency
placements.

The service also worked
closely with the Virtual
School supporting young

people who were
excluded or on areduced
timetable at school.

Dedicated placement
support workers also
supported care leavers

living independently
and looked after
children in children’s
homes.



Children in Care Council

Recruitment
Members took part regularly on recruitment panels for new staff working with young people
within East Sussex.

Brighton University

3 CICC members facilitated their annual two-hour lecture at Brighton University with
students on the social work degree course. They discussed their CICC role and showcased
many of their projects. They delivered a quiz as well as a brand new interactive
“separation and loss” exercise designed by a CICC member.

APPG

CICC members attended several national zoom meeting alongside 21 looked after young
eople on how social workers can build meaningful relationships with young people and to
est support those in care who identify as LGBTQ. The CICC have subsequently written and

adelivered their own training session for staff on sexuality and identity.
w

\l

Corporate Parents and Senior Management Team

CICC held a ceremony at Little Dunbar to plant a tree in support of ‘Positivitree’. This was
attended by Councillor Bob Bowdler and several members of the senior management team.
Positivitree is a national initiative for youth voice groups to celebrate their work alongside
decision makers and corporate parents.

CICC Partnership working - Pan Sussex

3 members attended the Sussex Family Justice Board's annual training event for
professionals working within the family justice system. They delivered a presentation on
key messages that young people in care want adults to know. This was facilitated in
partnership with CICC members from East Sussex, Brighton and Hove.

Youth Cabinet

CICC have worked alongside the youth cabinet for recruitment panels and the annual RPPR
meeting, in which the new CICC experienced how youth voice influences decision making within
the county council around spending and services.




Children in Care Council (continued)

National Recognition
CICC were awarded second place in Coram Voice’s national participation award. This was in
recognition for their work and the impact it has had both locally and nationally.

Funding
CICC have secured an extra £804.88 in extra funding this year from the HAF Government

scheme. This was used for 2 enriching team building activities - Bushy Wood in the Summer
holidays and Ice Skating at Christmas. A further £500 funding application from Sussex Police

Community fund to purchase hoodies for the new CICC to wear was also successful.

o
jab)

Q
%USS it (Speak up Sessions)
935 activities giving 71 young people the opportunity to speak out and speak up if they

wanted too. Through this engagement 60 young people have asked for help with individual
issues.

Digital Ambassadors

CICC digital ambassadors have continued to work with get digital. They have co delivered
several training events, most recently the annual digital practice conference. They have
worked hard to promote the digital hive, an online resource for supporting online
resilience and safety.

National Participation

9 CICC members along with 79 young people with care experience from all over the UK,
attended a day at the Coram Voice HQ in London. Workshops included Disability, Inclusion,
Speaking up and Participation.




Our Children’s
Homes

/\
Hazel lodge, St Leonards-on-Sea

* The home was judged as ‘Good’ by Ofsted - January 2024.
* Young people at the home have made positive progress.
* The staff team remains stable and has expanded in the last few months.

Brodrick House, Eastbourne

- The home was judged as ‘Good in all areas’ by Ofsted - March 2024
It was noted in the Ofsted report that ‘the young people are cared for by a skilled and dedicated
staff team’. Another comment was that ‘the children are thriving because of good quality of care’.

- There have been several changes in the staff team including a new RHM but the team have
maintained a high quality of therapeutic care.

- The team are aspirational for the young people to ensure that they have the best opportunity to
succeed both educationally and socially.

- The young people have experienced varied activities throughout the year including all of the young
people going away on holiday.

- The home is in the process of refurbishment including the kitchen and utility room with the young
people helping to choose the color scheme.

Homefield Cottage, Seaford

e The home was judged by OFSTED to be ‘outstanding’ in all areas in December 2023.

e The children resident in the home have all made good progress.

e Two of the children have recently sat all of their GCSEs and have college placements for September
2024.

e The children were taken to Centre Parcs at Easter for a five day holiday which they very much
enjoyed.

e The staff team continue to be resilient, child focussed and have high aspirations for our resident
children and young people.



Our Children’s

Homes (continued)

/\

Silver Birches, Hastings

* Judged as ‘Good’ by Ofsted in January 2024.

+ Effective systems in place to monitor children's progress including self-evaluating
tools, that have been recognised by Ofsted inspector as exemplary practice.

* The home continues to support children accessing education despite significant
challenges with individual requirements.

* Sensory space installed for therapeutic relaxation.

* Further development of expansive outdoor space planned to include additional
decking, patio and sensory garden.

+ Staff team has been expanded to include additional Senior RYSWs. Training to
further develop the therapeutic skills and approaches are ongoing.

Lansdowne Secure Children’s Home, Hailsham

* Reopened January 2024 following a restructure.

» The Care Team are working well with the addition of some newly recruited staff,
and the new structure allows for enhanced Care Planning.

» There is a high-quality, creative in-house Education offer led by skilled teachers
and support staff.

* An improved Health offer will be in place from September which will support
scaling up to admit more children.

* Currently looking to accept 6th admission.

» Steering Group including DfE, SAN and NHS England remains in place.



Our Children’s
Homes (Continued)

Acorns, Bexhill-on-Sea
» Provides care for 8 young people, who have a high level of
complex needs.

» Staff work closely with colleagues in the Health, Education
and Social Care around the care and pathway planning for
each young person.

« Judged as ‘Requires Improvement’ by Ofsted in May 2023.

The Bungalow, Eastbourne

» Registered for 7 children aged 7-19 and provides full time
accommodation to children with a severe level of disability
and who are unable to live in a family setting.

* Most children attend local schools and all maintained
contact with their families.

» The Bungalow received an Ofsted judgement of ‘requires
improvement ¢ in June 2023



The health of our children

NHS Core Plus 5 - LAC and Care Leavers have been identified, both nationally and locally, as a group who should be included in
the 'plus’ cohort to ensure their health needs are prioritised across all services.

There has been a gradual improvement in the timeliness of the % Initial Health Assessments (IHAs) Within 20 & 25 Days
completion of Initial Health Assessments (IHA’s), albeit the performance
remained below the local target for 23/24.

The Head of Locality Services implemented a robust tracking and
monitoring process to improve performance, and this data was scrutinised
at the quarterly Health Strategic Meetings throughout the year. 70%

The primary reason for most delays was oo

100%
90%
80%

2t abed

* The need for IHA’s being rescheduled when the first appointment o

could not be made for child/carer/SW or parent. 40%

30%
This was Followed by 20%
10%
Placement outside ESCC 0%
Declined (by parent)

Delay in CLA notification process

Late forms submitted

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25Q1

20Days 25Days =20 Days Target 25 Days Target

The changes to the LAC age profile also impacted on this performance
with a higher number of older children declining IHA’s.



£t abed

The health of our children (continued)

There has been a dramatic improvement in the timely completion of Review
Health Assessments during the course of 23/24.

The ESHT Children in Care (CiC) Nursing Team had a number of staff changes
including the appointment of a new 0.8FTE Service Manager (Named Nurse)
who joined at the end of Q2.

The new Service Manager undertook an immediate practice review and
cleansing of the data collection systems. This resulted in more reliable and
accurate data and more robust systems.

The explanation for some of the RHA’s being completed out of timescales
were- late requests, missing data, cancellations by Carers/Social Workers and
some nursing capacity pressures.

There was a strong emphasis on collaborative working between ESHT and
ESCC in Q3 and Q4. This has resulted in a number of developments to reduce
delays such as rolling consent for all CiC, the introduction of a Nurse led
caseload model, implementation of internal processes and disseminating
findings and recommendations across both agencies.

The interagency working and changes to practice have resulted in an
improvement in RHA completion as evidenced in Q3 and Q4 findings.

Review Health Assessment Data 2023-

80.00%
70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%

24 ESCC

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

B Number of RHAs in Date
B Number of RHAs out of date



The mental and emotional wellbeing of our children

The Sussex Children and
Young Peoples’ Emotional
Wellbeing and Mental
Health Strategy 2022-2027
for Sussex Children and
Young People up to the age
of 25s produced by the
Sussex Health and Care
Partnership sets the
direction of travel for the
development of local
services.

The Looked After Children’s
Mental Health Service
(LACMHS) offered; 41

consultations to the
networks during 2023-24
this was up by 6 on the
previous year, 56 drop ins
which was down again by
12 for 2023/24, and three
Therapeutic Parenting
Groups were offered to
foster carers during the year
which is one less than the
previous year. There have
been further consultations
offered to the Residential
Children's Home staff. The
numbers of cases opened
at any one time varied
between 74(Q2) and 106
(Q4). This service is fully
staffed although there has
been an overall reduction in
the clinical team due to
financial pressures.

The specification for
LACAMHS was finalised
and was awaiting
mobilisation at year end
once funding issues were
clarified. The new
specification addresses the
review findings of: longer
waiting times due to
increasing demand due to
children coming into care,
Section 20 cases, and
Section 31 return home
assessments; more LAC
presenting with significant
risk of harm to themselves
or others; crisis situations,
urgent assessments and
interventions for high risk;
the number of placement
breakdowns and associated
support for children
affected; and the level of
need arising in RCH.

The ongoing staffing
recruitment challenges
within SPFT for the Adopted
Children’s Mental Health
Service (ADCAMHS) were
not resolved during
2023/24. Mental Health
Support for this group of
children and their families
was largely provided by
independently
commissioned therapists
funded by the Adoption
Support Fund. A proposal
which could enhance this
commissioning is currently
being explored with the
SWIFT service.




The mental and
emotional wellbeing
of our children
(continued)

A specialist Mental Health Nurse has continued to support the
Through Care Service to offer direct interventions to young people,
and advice and guidance to their allocated workers.

The Health and Wellbeing Project for Care Leavers was maintained
during 2023/24. Up until March 2024, 117 personalised health
budgets had been allocated to young people.

The Named Nurse role was embedded in SPFT during 23/24 and
offered safeguarding consultation to LACAMHS and the wider SPFT
services in East Sussex. The Named Nurse also rolled out specialist
training and supervision across the organization.

The Named Nurse completed a Quality Improvement project which
focused on improving performance data and training to increase SPFT
staff awareness/knowledge regarding Looked after Children and Care
Leavers. The training addressed core safeguarding issues in relation
to adult specialist safeguarding and specialist children’s

safeguarding. Improvements in the data capture has assisted the
day-to-day operational management, and it also enabled the service
to identify Looked After Children requiring a transfer of care to adult
mental health services or primary care.



Education of our children - Headline data

The Virtual School’s (VS) strategic role to promote the educational outcomes for children with a Social Worker has continued to develop and from
September 2024 will include children in Kinship care. The VS worked strategically with social care and education teams across the authority on
attendance, inclusion and special education needs. The VS provided advice and information to social workers and worked with the Designated
Safeguarding Leads Network within schools. The VS delivered a Master series in Education for social workers which has been developed to cover
key educational issues and changes in educational policy.

é\'he VS continued to work in partnership with post 16 providers to ensure a joined-up approach towards improved educational planning, attendance and
Erovision for UASC.
(@)

The Care to Work group brought staff from across the LA together to ensure that our YP have access to existing employment and training opportunities
and to develop opportunities.

299 blocks of tuition were provided to 53 children last academic year. 100% of all children and young people said their confidence against their targets
had increased. 98% of the young people achieved at least one target and partially met the others.

EAL tutors delivered 169 sessions of EALS additional language tuition through the year. Young people engaged well with sessions and went on to
certificated courses at college.

The VS training offer included Designated Teacher (DT) training, attachment training, Personal Education Planning training and an Education Master
Series for Social Workers. 271 delegates attended training in addition to those trained as part of whole school training. The VS held Educational
Psychologist advice sessions for schools, DT network meetings and a book club focussed on an article of key interest e.g. FAS.

VS funded and supported 65 Alternative Provision interventions for 43 young people to support the development of skills to support learning in school.



Education of our children (continued)

Children In Care Achievement awards: 124 children were nominated in the categories of educational achievement, positive contribution,
personal achievement and skills and talents. Awards ceremonies took place for younger and older age groups. “It was one of the loveliest,
most heartwarming evenings | have ever spent and, if there is ever another spare place, | would love to go again. It was a privilege to be
there’ ( Attendee).

The Children in Care Council has worked with us to produce newsletter articles for Designated teachers on their experiences and thoughts
Hn effective support. The articles have been used as a basis for discussion in training

«Q

(9]

Academic Data: All current data is provisional, and progress and attainment 8 data is not yet available for GCSEs.

Key Stage 2 data suggests that outcomes are lower than last year in reading, writing and maths. Cohorts year on year are very different
and all have their own stories. One child achieved the highest score possible in writing and maths and others were working at greater
depth. 31%, however, were assessed as working below the level of the assessment and so did not sit the tests. 37% had an EHCP and
another 37% were on the SEND register.

Key Stage 4 Data was similarly down from last year but better than pre- COVID results. High levels included a level 7 in French and 6és in
Geography, Art, Design Technology and Food. 29% of this cohort had an EHCP

Our post 16 YP gained A levels and BTecs in subjects including Philosophy, History, Psychology, Marketing and Drama.

13 Care Leavers gained University places for September. Many post 16 young people also achieved level 1 and 2 qualifications and were
ready to progress onto other courses.



The Thrcugh Care Team - what we have achieved in 2023-24

* Groupwork takes place weekly in Eastbourne and Hastings with young people meeting for lunch, careers advice and mental health support.

* Young people took part in a variety of consultation events, such as a National Youth Voice event and they have reviewed Care Leaver Information Apps, some events took
place in person and others remotely, thus ensuring wider accessibility and participation.

+ The Care Leavers Council met each month remotely.

* Young people regularly participated in ESCC Corporate Parenting Panel.

A Facebook notice board provided young people with information about upcoming events and useful links. A text messaging service is under development to provide
another means of keeping in touch with our young people.

Young people represented East Sussex at National Benchmarking events and we had our first National Young Persons Champion attend the national manager's event.

. 8y abed

Young people all had access to laptops and Wi-Fi in order to continue with their education, facilitate their access to employment and to keep in touch with their families.
* In consultation with young people we launched a new Pathway Plan which is more succinct and better captures the voice and views of the young person.

+ The Local Offer is shared with all young people ensuring they were aware of the support available to them.

+ Developments continued to extend the wider corporate parenting role across all agencies in East Sussex and the multi-agency Care 2 Work Strategic meeting was re-

established.

+ The Health and Wellbeing Project continued to support young people to use personalised budgets for activities designed to improve their overall wellbeing. This initiative
has received widespread acclaim nationally.

* Young people attended a celebration event where their achievements were recognised



61 abed

The Through Care Team
What we have achieved in 2023-24 (continued)

Placement Support Workers
(PSWs) continued to work closely
with our young people who were
isolated in their own
accommodation or were struggling
to maintain their placements.

The (TCT) continued to work closely
with East Sussex County Council
Adult Social Care Specialist
Accommodation Team ensuring a
smoother transition for those Care
Leavers with diagnosed mental
health needs or trauma related
diagnoses.

S

A Rent Guarantor pilot scheme was
implemented to secure better
quality private rental
accommodation options for young
people.

The Skills Journal was developed in
partnership with Young People and
is due to be launched in 24/25

Young people accessed the Life
Long Links service, which
promoted connections with family
members and other significant
adults in their lives.

The housing pathway was reviewed
and the CSAAL launched.



Our Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC)

Developments 2023-24

o 05 8bed

The Illegal Migration Act came into force in March 2023. The impact of this resulted in many children who arrived in the
UK after that date not being able to have their claims processed and therefore remained in legal limbo. Those who
turned 18 were completely reliant on ESCC for housing and living costs and had no access to the usual ’'move on’ housing
routes. This put considerable stress on the post 18 housing provision.

There were also an increasing number of young people who arrived in ESCC who were age disputed by the Home Office,
all of which required full age assessments. The service worked closely with the National Age Assessment Board to
complete age assessments in a timely manner.

All hotels in East Sussex housing adult and unaccompained asylum seekers were decommissioned between summer 2023
and Spring 2024.

The team were chosen to highlight positive practice at an event held in parliament.

After a successful initial year, the service extended My View, a Refugee Council therapy service specifically for refugee
young people. The uptake of this service was high and the young people’s feedback was very positive about the impact

this therapy had on their wellbeing.



IS aﬁec.l

Our Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children

(continued)

The service continued to explore a range of new education offers for UASC, including partnering with a local college
to start a summer course for those who have struggled to access mainstream education or arrived too late to start the

school term. The EALS (English as an additional language service) increased its offer of personalised tuition for this
group of young people.

Joint work was undertaken with health colleagues to improve the health offer to UASC. The Initial Health Assessments
were adapted to take account the specific issues for this cohort. Young people were able to access blood screening at
their IHAs, which supported prompt health interventions for those with potential blood borne diseases.

The service worked closely with the local migrant support services for adults, information sharing and seeking

community support for our care leaving cohort. We have continued to support Unaccompanied Minors coming from
Ukraine.

Young people were supported to access additional social activities to improve their wellbeing in groups. This included
cycling, rock climbing and football with Brighton and Hove Albion.

The 'Welcome to the UK' groups continued regularly during this period, building positive introductions to services such
the police for new arrivals

The second successful residential to Jamie's Farm was held in Spring 2024, with a group of young people experiencing
life on a farm over the half term holiday



2S abed

Our Children who went missing

In 2023-24, 136 LAC went missing:

* 93 were male (68%), 40 were female (29%) and 3 were indeterminate (2%).
« 77 were aged 16 and over (57%), 59 were aged 15 and under (43%).

* 101 went missing more than once (74%).

There were 1075 missing episodes throughout the year.

* 912 episodes were where the child/young person was missing for less than 24 hours (85%).

* 93 episodes were where the child/young person was missing between 24 and 48 hours (9%).

» 40 episodes were where the child/young person was missing between 2 and 4 days (4%).
* 30 episodes where the child/young person was missing for over 4 days (3%).
All of these children were tracked by Sussex Police and by Children Services staff.

Risk assessments were regularly reviewed on high profile children who went missing and where
necessary, formal strategy discussions were held in line with safeguarding procedures.

Male
Female

Indeterminate

Aged <16

Aged 16+

1Episode

2+ Episodes

<24 Hours
24-48 Hours
2-4 Days

W >4 Days




Our children
who are at
risk of
criminal

exploitation

During 2023-24, 68 children were subject to ESCC
SAFER operational oversight and therefore categorised
as being at high risk of exploitation.

8 of these children were ESCC LAC, 2 were female and
6 were male.

2 of these children were deemed to be at risk of sexual
exploitation and 5 deemed to be at risk of criminal
exploitation. One child was at risk of both criminal
and sexual exploitation.



Our children
involved in
the Youth
Justice
Service

The Youth Justice Service (YJS) worked with 14 looked
after children during 2023-24. A further 7 children
became looked after as a result of being securely
remanded.

5% of the YJS caseload in 2023-24 were Looked After
Children.

Looked After Children aged 10 - 17 represented less
than 1% of the total population of this age group
across the county, however they remained over-
represented within the YJS cohort.



My Voice Matters
meetings

This is the ESCC
approach to statutory
Looked After Children’s
Reviews.

The paperwork is
written to be accessible
to the individual child.
The records outcome is
written as a letter to
£he child and copied to
gdults as necessary.

(6]

There has been positive
feedback about the IRO
profiles that are now
shared with Looed After
Children; they noted
that they like knowing a
little bit about their
IRO. Some children have
also been able to
choose their IRO after
viewing the profiles.

My Voice Matters (MVM)

Timeliness of My Voice Matters meetings
* 90% of all MVM were held early or on time in 2023/2024
« 2021/2022 97%
« 2022/2023 95%

» There was an increase in MVM meetings being held late in this review period, this was largely
due to workload capacity within the safeguarding unit. Some late reviews were delayed in the
child's best interests or because an essential party was unable to attend. The unit will be fully
staffed by Q2 2024/2025 so it is anticipated the performance will improve.

Participation: children make their voices heard in lots of different ways

« 92% of Children aged 4+ participated in some way in their MVMs process
« 2021/2022 97%
« 2022/2023 97%

« Participation performance deteriorated during 23/24. However, following some closer
examination the records showed that most children even if they did not attend their meeting,
did complete their views with the Social Worker. The IRO service will focus on the improvement
of participation of children in their MVM meetings in 24/25.



The role of our elected members

The Corporate Parenting Panel met virtually 4 times during 2023-24 to discuss the agenda items set out below

25 April 2023

. Quarterly Registered Children’'s Homes Report
- . Any other exempt items considered urgent by the Chair
% . Looked After Children (LAC) Statistics
> . Overview of new Ofsted sub judgement for Care Leavers
. Presentation on Post 18 education, employment and training support for care experienced young people in East Sussex

25 July 2023

. Children’s Home report (including recent Ofsted inspection reports)
. LAC stat report

. Fostering Report

. CiCC presentation and Brightspots survey

. Presentation from LAC Health team

. Care Leavers -Personalised Health Budgets programme



The role of our elected members (continued)

17 October 2023

e ESCC Children’s Homes Quarterly Regulation 44 summary report
e Looked After Children (LAC) Statistics

e Look After Children’s (LAC) Annual Report

Children in Care Council (CiCC) Annual Report

e Independent Reviewing Officer (IRO) Annual Report

/G abed
[ ]

05 January 2024

e Quarterly Registered Children's Homes Report

e Looked After Children (LAC) Statistics

e Lansdowne Secure Unit update on relaunch

e Impower presentation-Sufficiency and Valuing care



Sufficiency and Valuing Care (IMPOWER)

Sufficiency of all placement types continued to be very challenging during this period. A consequence of this was that there
were occasions when children were placed in unregistered provision for short periods of time. These arrangements were
subject to robust risk assessments and carefully monitored.

o IMPOWER worked with ESCC from May 2023 to January 2024. The purpose of the work was to secure the right care, for the

%’ right child, for the right length of time. IMPOWER is a consultancy firm who work exclusively with the public sector.

o
(0¢]

The first phase of work

« focussed on better understanding the needs of Looked After Children in ESCC, associated pressures and the
identification of opportunities to do things differently.

» This was followed by the introduction of the Children’s Valuing Care Tool which focussed on their needs, strengths and
outcomes, and the Fostering Valuing Care Tool which focussed on the skills and capacity of foster carers.

In the final phases
» A strategy was designed to improve the recruitment and retention of foster carers locally.
« Market management and commissioning processes were enhanced by the deployment of additional resources.



6G abed

Use of Resources 2023/24 £m
Budget £46m
Net spend £73m
Overspend £27m

Adoption Support, £0

Agency foster care, EE&




Priorities for 2024/25

I',

09 abed

As part of the SE regional
care cooperative further
develop market
management strategies
to improve placement
commissioning and
sustainability.

) 4

Maximize opportunities to
recruit and retain LA foster
carers, including partnership
with SE
Fostering Hub and impleme
ntation of ‘mockingbird’

®

Strengthen partnerships
and integrated
commissioning with local
health providers and ICB,
including in house residential
provision

Encourage key partners to
commit to the local offer
for our care leavers
including each embedding
the meaningful application
of the ‘protected
characteristics’

Maximise sources of
financial support for our
young peopleincluding
pip, appointeeship and

deputyship

ay,
"W

Embed 'Valuing Care'
approach across our service
to ensure children are in the

right placements that meet
their needs and are value for
money.



Priorities for 2024-25 (continued)

T9 abed

&

Review and refresh Housing
pathway

Consolidate practice in relation to
the reunification programme to
promote the

safe return home for LAC

Improve recruitment and retention
across our residential homes and
reduce use of agency carers.

In partnership with ASE, promote
best practice in relation to early
permanence, keeping in touch and
post adoption support. Improved
performance in relation to
timeliness for children with a

plan for adoption.

Evaluate Life Story Work Pilot

;)

o -

Digital strategy - contribution to the
data and dashboard
project/implementation of the
provider portal/digital life skills
solution/launch of ePEP/roll out of
ClearCare

Contribute to
ESCC's implementation of the Care
Review



Children’s Services Annual Reports 2023-24

ADO PTl O N | F @‘mﬁ:u,. @w By
il Eounty el
EAST

East Sussex Fostering Services
Annual Progress Report

2023/24
ANNUAL REPORT

FOR 2023/24

29 abed

East Sussex gt Retewing

Service

CO u nty CO unc i l ‘Annual Report 2023/2024

Dawn Price Operations Manager

« The Annual IRO report
provides quantitative and
qualitative evidence
relating to IRO Services
in East Sussex as required
by statutory guidance.

« The IRO Annual Report
must be presented to the
Corporate Parenting
Panel.

+ Please see Glossary for definitions

e

Adoption

South East




	Agenda
	1 Minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2024
	7 Regulation 44 Quarterly Summary Report - Quarter 2 (July 2025 - September 2025)
	Appendix 1

	9 Looked After Children (LAC) Statistics
	Appendix 1

	10 Looked After Children Annual Report
	Appendix 1
	Slide 1: Looked After Children’s Annual Progress Report  2023-24
	Slide 2: Who did we look after? 
	Slide 3: Ethnicity of our Looked After Children (LAC)  
	Slide 4: Our Unaccompanied Asylum-Seeking Children (UASC) 
	Slide 5: Children looked after by the Disability Service 
	Slide 6: Where our children are living  
	Slide 7: How well did we do in 2023-24? 
	Slide 8: How well did we do in 2023-24? (continued) 
	Slide 9: What the performance data is telling us
	Slide 10: Adoption South East (ASE)  
	Slide 11: Adoption South East (ASE)  
	Slide 12: Fostering Recruitment  
	Slide 13
	Slide 14: Placement Support Service
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17: Our Children’s Homes 
	Slide 18: Our Children’s Homes (continued) 
	Slide 19: Our Children’s Homes (Continued) 
	Slide 20: The health of our children 
	Slide 21
	Slide 22: The mental and emotional wellbeing of our children 
	Slide 23: The mental and emotional wellbeing of our children  (continued) 
	Slide 24:  Education of our children - Headline data     
	Slide 25:  Education of our children (continued)      
	Slide 26: The Through Care Team - What we have achieved in 2023-24
	Slide 27: The Through Care Team What we have achieved in 2023-24 (continued) 
	Slide 28: Our Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (UASC) 
	Slide 29: Our Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children (continued)
	Slide 30: Our Children who went missing   
	Slide 31: Our children who are at risk of criminal exploitation
	Slide 32: Our children involved in the Youth Justice Service  
	Slide 33:  My Voice Matters (MVM)  
	Slide 34: The role of our elected members 
	Slide 35: The role of our elected members (continued)
	Slide 36: Sufficiency and Valuing Care  (IMPOWER)
	Slide 37
	Slide 38: Priorities for 2024/25 
	Slide 39: Priorities for 2024-25 (continued) 
	Slide 40: Children’s Services Annual Reports 2023-24 



